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BRISLINGTON BULLETINS II

S

The second volume of "Bulletins" records Brislington 1600-1699, from the
latter days of Elizabeth I, to James I, Charles I, Cromwell, Charles II,
James II1 and Villiam & Mary. Turbulent years from Gunpowder Plot to
“Glorious Revolution", by way of Civil War, Regicide, Republic and
Restoration. Through it all, Brislington plodded om, and in the latter
years at least, pragmatically rang the church bells at each change of
political direction. Had poor Monmouth become James III, he, 1 have no
doubt, would have had a special peal too!

Locally, the Lacy family, our Lords of the Manor, who were largely
absentees, sold Brislington to the Langtons, new rich merchants from
Bristol. The Langtons who were far more in evidence, supplied us with
Langton Court, and their pame still survives both as a rpad and a pub
sigmn.

As before, I have listed as much information as I have come across,
though with the exception of my opening pages, 1 bave generally omitied
the baptisme, marriages and burials which took place at St Luke's,
There is then no detalled exploration of the intricate metwork of family
relationships within the parish, and I intend to leave this jigsaw until
my dotage when I am no longer able to get out of my armchair!

Ae already lamented elsewhere, almost all of our Somerset proved wills
were destroyed by enemy action during the Second World War. Tha few
which escaped have been mentioned in the text, and elther reproduced
fully or remarked in passing. Coples of PCC wills may be obtained from
the Public Record Office and those proved in Somerset from the Somerset
Record Office. I would be grateful if anyone has occaslon to send for
one or more of these Brislington wills, they would allow me to make a

cOpY.

I have included in this volume, addenda to Brislington Bulletins 1. A
newly discovered list of male inhabitants dating from about 1586 seemed
to good to waste. Also, my attention was drawn to an error which I have
now corrected.

As little things please little minds, I have unearthed a few nore
eccentric spellings of our village. These will be found at the end of
the volume under the heading "Ow due spel Briz?"

Finally, did you spot the deliberate mistake on the cover of Brislington
Bulletins 17

: D.P. Lindegaard BA.

Brislington. November, 1993.
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1 am grateful to the authors of the works listed above for the many
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Service. The staff at SRO and GRO. And especially, to Margaret Davey,
whan all could bhave been lost,
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From the Parish Register

w211 men are Liars". The dreadful waraing of the Book of Psalms came too
late for Aghes Panter, who brought her daughter to be baptised at St
Luke's on December 15, 1605, for little Alis was "“a base child". Worse
still, Agnes had been cast out of doors when bher "disgrace" became
known, for according to the parish register she was "a late sarvant of
Thomas White". The baby's reputed father was Harry Green, barely
eighteen, who not long before had gone to Bristol as a carpenter's
apprentice. A decade later, the brave Joan Puxley, aged 22, stood up to
the Bishop of Bath and Wells, cuope, mitre, crozlier and all, when her

case was heard at the ecclesiastical court. "Richard Deane, who liveth
at Bristol is the fatber thereof,” she declared, adding helpfully, "but
sometimes he liveth at Clapton”. The case against Richard was

dismissed, but Joan named zhim again when her infant Ursula was
christened on April 7, 1616,  True, we have oaly her word fer it, and
Richard might have been innocent of all blane, nevertheless it -is
comforting to read that in 1619, Joan married a man called John
Brighton, and hopefully lived happlly ever after, :

Joan was, as far as [ can tell, the only one of Brislington's single

nothers to marry. Most disappeared}'like Agnes QOrchard, mother of an
unnamed baby carried to the font on October 11, 1600, "a base child, the
father's name unknown", and Alis Vowles, whose daughter Anne was

baptised February 2, 1605, and buried the following February 24, "base,
John Pope the younger the reputed father®.

Feither Agnes Vastfylde nor Agres Harford named the fathers of thelr
children in 1621. Both family names would become prominent amengst the
Quakers, the Harfords in Bristol and the Wastfields locally, notably
Robert Wastfield, a Parliamentarian, of whom more later. Alilce Phelps
named John Maynard father of her daughter Joan in 1624, James Vatis was
held to be responsible for Alice Pope's son Aaron in 1635, and Willlam
Brewer for Frances, the daughter of Alice Stevens 1n 1636,

The burden of bringing up an illegitimate child was placed solely on the
mother, but a woman had great difficulty in finding paid employment,
except as a servant, and loss of her "good name" possibly closed even
this avenue. The expense therefore of an unwanted child could well fall
upon the ratepayers, unless additional liability could be proved.
WVhilst most affalrs must have been well known, there were bound to be
those which were secret, where the man was already married, or even
where a baby had been conceived as a result of rape. FPregnant single
women were gquestioned about the paternity of their offspring, and 1if-
they failed to answer prior to the birth, midwives were in a unique
position to discover a name, especially under the shadow of death during
labour itself. For example, Elizabeth Simonds' baby Bartholomew,
christened August 24, 1618, of whom the parish register states: "It is
reported by the midwife, Agnes Newman, and others that Thomas Rysse is
the father." Apart from the vexed question of expense, guilty parties
‘could not be seen to get away with wanton behaviour. Mother and
putative father would then be bound over to appear at the Quarter
Sessions before two Justices of the Peace. The woman - as a "daughter

_'?_.
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of Eve" - was considered the prime mover. The men, poor souls, had like
Adam, succumbed to femptation and couldn't really belp it. Thus,
generally cpeaking the father of the child was sentenced to a fine, and
the mother to a flogging!

Is this what happened to our Brislington women? Very probably, though
we have no records which say so specifically, [we know the village had
both stocks and whipping postl, but all over Somerset, similar women
were undergoing great hardship and brutal humiliation for the "crime" of
bearing a bastard. In only one case of many, Francis Baber esquire and
Sir Thomas Bridges, of Keynsham, magistrates, ordered John Bush of
Temple Cloud to pay ten pence weekly to the Overseers of the Poor at
Cameley until his child was able to earn a 1living, but the mother
Margery Webb "shall keep the child herself without receiving anything
for the same and..... .....for her further punishment shall be by the
officers of Cameley stript naked from the middle upwards and whipt until
her back be bloody two several times, the first at Pensford next market
day, the second at Cameley, the Monday folluwing - Further proof that
the percelved greater blame lay with the mother 1s contained in the
sympathetic memo addressed in 1612 . to a fellow magistrate by the same
Sir Thomas Bridges requesting that the bearer, John Woolley of Keynsham
be discharged.... "the child being since dead and the woman runne
away....in regard he is a very poor fellow." I bave found only one
instance where both parents suffered together, and that was clearly a
special case, deeply offensive to the Puritan ethos:

"there shall be during their whipping two fiddles playing
before them to make known their lewdness in begetting the
sald base child upon the Sabbath Day, coming from dancing.”

Oh dear.

If a child was conceived where there had been a previous promise to
marry, the woman was still deemed responsible, but she generally escaped
public scourging, hence at Keynsham in 1619 where the magistrates
ordered Robert Ford, a tanner, to pay one shilling a week, and Elizabeth
Taunton, the mother, to "keep the child without receilving any allowance,
or in default pay 6d weekly....and whereas there were divers motions of
marriage between the parties and they have recelved punishment by
ecclesiastical laws, corporal punishment of the said Elizabeth is
foreborn, "

Does this mean that immorality was rampant among our people in this
period? Rather the opposite, in fact, for illegitimacy was really
rather rare. Personal decorum, formalised by Church laws, upheld by
magistrates and clerics, and spled on by busybodids saw to that. S0 why
should 1 bring it up at all? The answer is simple. MNuch of history is
male history. With the exception of a few powerful females, of whom
Queen Ellzabeth I is the paramount example, especially where the parish
reglister is concerned, a woman hovered about in the background of 1life,
scarcely mentioned, except as the adjunct of her nearest male relative:
&0 anidl s0'n daughler, hie wife, or his widow; in her old age, his
mother; if she was unmarried, his sister. Vhen a couple brought a child

1
|
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for christening, at St Luke's as elsewhere at this time, the mother
might as well not have been there at all. A typleal entry reads

"Joan daughter of Farnum Cox, Baptised September 15, 1616."

Which is a hit thick, considering "the pains of Hell" of childbirth, as
described in the Book of Common Prayer, not to say the very real danger
of death. The name of poor Mrs Cox, among many other wives and mothers
is lost to us forever.

As we have seen, this is different in the case of unmarried mothers. We
know their names, and in some cases the identity of their former lavers.
We know they were likely to disappear from Erislington. Probably they
went to a desperate life "on the road" like a little family in February
1601, when a baby called Willlam, the son of an unknown woman was
baptised at the request of a Mr Thomas Erall, "the woman having but one
leg". A sad example, and hardly, I would think, one of the notoricus
"sturdy ©beggars" who brought or similar apoplexy to the first
Elizabethans as travellers do to some second Elizabethans today. We can
guess that mother and child were quickly harried out of the parish, as
were another one parent family, "Sydrach" and his mother, "a stranger at
John Whippie's", perhaps accompanied by Meshach and Abednego, in 1616.

Others were on the move too. The child of Thomas Villiams, a roving
glass carrier, from Bradford on Avon was baptised at Brislington in
1607; o was Elizabeth, daughter of Henry Mills, "Minister of the Word",

~likewise travelling the roads 1n 1620, and Martha, daughter of another

traveller, Richard Sampeon, *late of High Wells". All these babies must

‘have had their mothers with them, though none is mentioned. A more

settled individual, Mr William Higgins had a house at Wick, our awn
modern Wick Road, where John the son of John Holten was born in 1603.
John Hedges' and John Greens' houses were the venues when Mrs Nicolas
Lewis, and Mrs Anthony Hedges, that way round, gave birth in 1604. Can
we perhaps read between the lines that all these unnamed new mothers had
gone home to their own mothers to have their babies? And is there a
hint of possible scandalised doubt expressed in 1623, at the christening
of Thamas, son of a certain Mr Webb, "as his wife sayeth"?

In the case of marriage, we are fortunate that the names of both bride
and groom are told to us. [It is not unknown to read in some parish
registers that "Joseph Green married his wife"!] A Brislington bride
might marry a man from another place, and go away to live; a local man
might wed outside his own parish, In the latter event, the first
inkling we generally bave of the marriage, 1s when a child 1is
christened!

As to burilals, visitors provoke added comment. Joan Tucker, a servant of
a Mr Gingill, visiting from Huchwode in Wiltshire was struck daown in
1608. In the same year, "Flower, a mayde", was carried to her last rest

by "two men from Bristol".

Richard Phillpott, the parish priest autographed the register on a
number of occasions, as did his successor, Oliver Chivers, an Oxford
graduate who took over for a brief ministry, sometime during the autumn
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of 1631, In 1634, out of the blue, Oliver suddenly modernised, and
began naming both parents of baptised children, so that when the next
vicar, a family man, christened his own "Villiam, son of William Bourne,
minister, and "Alice", the practice was well established. Sadly,
Reverend William died in September 1638. His second son, Benjamin was
baptised posthumously the following April, probably by the Rev. Robert
Bacon, who stayed at Brislington only a year. Alice Bourne and her two
little boys left the parish. In 1639, the parish was ministered in
duality with Keynsham by Thomas Codrington, scion of the gentry
Codringtons of Doddington, who remained vicar until 1674, surviving
Civil Var, Republic and Restoration. He died at Malmesbury in 1676.

William Hobbes was churchwarden in 1609, and Richard Peasley appears to
have been parish clerk - starting a tradition in the Peasley family -
from 1619 to 1636, according to a little sum he drew in +the parish
register, perhaps tm settle an argument as to how long he had held the
office.

This was Brislington during the time of the first parish register, which
endured, sometimes haphazardly, and which tailed off drastically in the
panic leading up to the Civil Var. Occasional entries appear in the
second register concerning people born in the Commonwealth period, but I
suspect some of these were added years after the event, During the
-Interregnum, the recording of births, [not baptismsl, marriages and
deaths [not burlals] was the duty of a civil "Register", a forerunner of
the modern Registrar. We know nothing of this official in Brislington -
and sadly, none of hils records have survived. After the Restoration of
the Monarchy in 1661, the parish register resumed in earnest once again.

1. For a possible explanation of their disappearance, see my "Simple
Annals of the Poor", [19921.

2, D/D/Ca 196 SRO & PEB 7.4,1616

3. This, and other details of punishments can be found in SRS no 23,

Quarter Sessions, Vol I, 1607-1625, p69
4. ibid, Nicholas Ruddock/Katherine Canker, Glastonbury, July 1617

- 310~
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1601 - 1603, Blizabeth I to Jamas I

The Great Poor Law was passed, & direct consequence of the closure of
the monasteries which had previously provided charity and care to the
needy. It was: based on the principles that every parish was responsible
for 1ts own poor; that those who could, should work; the absolutely
helpless should be assisted, and incorrigible rogues and vagabonds
should be punished, A rate was collected from the parishioners
according to their means, and the Overseers of the Poor, of each parish,
{unpaid, and selected like other parish officials from the ranks of the
middling yeomanryl, saw to its administration. Where Charity officially
began at Home, we have already seen how much energy was expended in
keeping the likes of unmarried mothers off "the rates" and also in the
gwift and ruthless removal of impoverished visitors, the very people who
had once been able to claim a traditional "VWayfarer's Dole" from
benevolent monks and nuns. :

Most pecple worked six days a week, except on Sundays and Saints Days.

‘["Holy" or Holidaysl., A skilled tradesman 1like a carpenter, or

blacksmith would be a part-time husbandman with his own plot of land to
t111, with perhaps a cow, sheep, pigs and poultry. The yeoman or
husbandman proper would be very much aware that his one plot would not
provide subsistence for all his sons, particularly once they were
married, [and everybody was expected to marryl.« therefore they must be
sent away to learn a trade. Records of these transactions may be found
in the Bristol Apprentice Rolls, The names of the apprentice, his
father, the place of their domicile and the father's occupation, plus
the name of the master appear in the rolls, and as most masters were
married men, in direct ocontrast to the parish register entries, the
names of their wives appear as well. There were a few girl apprentices,
but predictably, they were taught "housewifery"! Widows sometimes
continued to take on apprentices in their late husband's trade. If an
apprentice successfuly completed his term of seven years, he became a
master craftsman himself, could take on his own apprentices and could
apply for the Freedom of the City, in which case his name will also
appear in the City Burgess Books. He could then vote in elections, and
even stand for civic office himself. Women, however well qualified could
not become burgesses, and they could not vote.

1604,

October 22 )

Andrew son of Ralph Fry of Brislington, apprenticed to Jonas Seldon,
wiredrawer, and his wife Margaret. [ BAR]
1605

January 17

William son of William Roche, husbandman of Brislington, apprenticed to
Christopher Clement, smith and his wife Mary. (1ibidl
March 13

Giles son of Richard Ithell, yeoman of Brislington, apprenticed to John
Everatt, weaver, and his wife Mary. [ibid]

-11 -
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{This John Everett, though perhaps working in Bristol was a Brislington
man, when he wrote his will in 1628, Lucky Gilles married Alice Everett,
his mester's daughter!]

April 22

Henry son of Jobn Green, husbandman of Brislington, apprenticed to Henry
Goodman, carpenter, and his wife Bridget, (ibidl
August 26

Aaron son of John Stevens, husbandman of Brislingtan, apprenticed to
Francis Bayley, clothworker, and his wife Elizabeth. (ibid]

December 23
Richard son of John Eyton, deceased, late Brislington, apprenticed to

Richard Nelson, clothworker, and his wife Janet. {ihid]

1606

February 7

William son of Thomas Whibbye, [Whippyl, husbandman of Brislington,

apprenticed to Richard Burrus, pewterer, fibidl

March 6

Thomas son of [John?} Stevens, husbandman of Brislington, apprenticed to
* William Underburye, clothworker, and his wife Alice, [1bid]

June 3

Robert son of Thomas Roche, deceased, late of Brislington, apprenanticed

to John VWateley, shearman, and his wife HElizabeth, {ibid?

July 25

John son of Thomas Hedge, husbandman, of Busleton, apprenticed to Thomas

Crabb, weaver, and his wife Joan. [1bigd]

July 28

Richard son of William Daniel of Brislington, apprenticed to Samuel

Villitt, tailor, and his wife Ciciley. [ibid]

December 1
A change of master for Richard Eyton; now apprenticed to John Williams,
clothworker, and his wife Elizabeth. Cibidl}

December 31
Richard son of William Hobin of Brislington, apprenticed to John Taylor,
shearman, and his wife Elizabeth. [1ibid]

1607, November 18
William son of William Walker, husbandman of Brislington, apprenticed to

Thomas Murdocke, wiredrawer, and his wife Joan, {ibidl
1608

January 8

A midwinter night's nightmare.,...... or the sad tale of Love's Labours
Lost:

-12 -
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A certain William Hall began calling on Jane Walter of Brislington, but
Jane's brother Alexander, having made enquiries regarding her suitor,
put a stop to the courtship. William, he said, had a wife already. This
was a wicked lle bellowed William, who, "disappointed in his purpose by
the travail of her brother, blamed him......... with malice in the eighth
degree”, and demanded that Alexander be taken to court for slander.

But William was a newcomer, and Alexander was well known and respected
in the neighbourbood. He was able to produce a petition signed by a
string of Brislington worthies who vouchsafed: "by the names which are
subscribed hereunder, the said Walter hath dwelt here for many years and
worketh hard for his living, and to the best of our knowledge is a true
man and we will neither pursue him accordingly."”

Before us: James Langton
Thomas Daniell
Richard Daniell, his mark
Thomas Jay
¥illiam Daniell, his mark
John Hedges
John Pope
villi Hill
¥illi Pain
Andrew Wyet,

This petition "in favour of Alexander Scalter of Brislington" was issued
at the Ilchester Bessions in April, Jane's reaction to her brother's
interference and her lover's retaliation have not been recorded. Neither
William Hall, nor Jane and Alexander, whether called Walter or Scalter
moke any appearance 1n the Brislington parish registers, ochristened
married or buried. At present 1t is impossible to state whether Jane
eventually married William or indeed anybody at all., It might be that-
they noved away to avoid further talk, I suspect brother Alexander was
reluctant to lose an unpaid housekeeper, .

It is intriguing that the name Langton appears in the petition, which
suggests the tantalising notion that "our Langtons® had Brislington
connections well before Ezekiel Langton purchased the manor from Rowland
Lacy.

At about the same time, there was another Brislington scandal. A certain
labourer called on a workmate one morning and suggested they went
threshing at a nearby farm. They had gone some way, when the first man
made some excuse [forgotten his f1all?] and leaving the other tao carry
on by himself, doubled bhack to his friend's cottage, where he knew the
wife was alone, and attempted to sexually assault her. I have not been
able to find the original source of this story, which is quoted as
contemporary with Jane Walter's in C.R. Quaife's "Vanton Wenches and
Wayward ¥ives"”, and I must protest that despite the book's title, both
these Brislington women were blameless parties, sinned against, rather
than sinning, and neither wayward nor wanton.

[ B8RO, Q/SR2 8.1.1607/8; SRS 23, QS Jas II

_13_
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1611

March 4 : :

William, son: of Ralph Fry of Brislington, apprenticed to Villiam Pardis,
shearman, and his wife Elizabeth. [ BAR]

but he didn't get on with shearing, which I take to be the manufacture
of scissors, rather than the denudatlion of sheep, and on

November 4
the apprentice was turned over to George Priest, butcher and his wife

Margaret. [ibdd]
but back to

May 28

Henry son of Bartholomew Bayley, yeoman of Brislington, apprenticed to
George Gibbes, brewer and his wife Mary. fibid]
1612

The will of John Bryant of Lipiat in Bitton was proved at Gloucester,
He left Joseph and Mary Daniell of "Brislon", five shillings. Thomas
Danlell of "Brislent", a cloak and Joan Daniell, also of "Brislent", a
"hellminge" chalr, whatever that may be. A goodly sum of 46 was left to
_ their childrem, The executor, Robert Jones, husbandman of Bitton, arnd
Thomas Bishope, yeaman of Bitton and Thomas Danieil, salter of
"Brislent", the overseers, were to recelve two shillings each. £ GROI

The truncated "Brislon" and “Brislent” are further amusing additions to
the numerous ways of spelling the name of our village. And, just for
fun, try repeating them over and over again, and I promise, you will get
a fair idea of good old John Bryant's accent, as interpreted by the
scribe who wrote down his last will.

June 27

Laurence son of Laurence Webb, of Brislington, smith, apprenticed to
John Vaughan, smith and Susan his wife, { BAR]
August 7

Richard son of John Stevens, husbandman of Brislington, apprenticed to
Giles Gregory, weaver, and his wife Joan. _ : [ibid]
1613

December 4

One of the most intriguing of Brislington characters is Richard
Phillpott, the 1long time vicar. Indeed in Brislingtom Bulletins I, I
have speculated that he may even have been two men, perhaps father and
son, of the same name. Historical research is detection, and now and
again additional clues emerge which make nonsense of previous theorles.
Such a clue was the discovery, tucked away in the churchwardens' book,
of a later century, copies of the details of Richard's tithe portions
and glebe terrier, [dated April 1817, "the originals being in the
possesslon of Edward Rolle Clayfield, esquire"], In his own words he
tells us that he has been curate "these three score years" and that, not
surprisingly, his "remembrance extendeth further than anyone now alive",

- 14 ~
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If he had indeed been incumbent since 1553, [or ¥fom 1566, which is
another date given#) then he is even more remarkable, Brislington's vary
own “Vicar of Bray" in fact, walking the tightrope of his fickle times,
adapting both to Catholic Mary, and Protestant Elizabeth.

.»but here now are Richard's depositions, and who can doubt they were
drawn up with a lawyer at his elbow?

"Whereas 1 Richard Phillpatt, clerk have by God's permission continued
curate in this parish of Brislington these three score years, and during
all that time, I have received and taken prive tythes dues and duties
due and payable to the vicar as they have grown due from time to time,
now at the earnest request of divers of the inhabitants of this parish
in regard mine own knowledge and remembrance extendeth further than any
one now here alive do declare under my hand the Truth and certainty of
all sald tithes and dues to the curate or vicar of Brislington as by the
custonr of this place and payable to him from before the memory of man to
this present day.

“Imprimis. At Easter or quarterly, at the choice of the curate every
bhouseholder in the parish to pay for his offering two pence, and two
pence for his wife and for every son and daughter that are communicants,
two pence, and one penny for his garden and three eggs for his cock and
two eggs for every hen.

"Item. At Lammas every inhabitant to pay for every cows milk or white
that he keepeth in this parish, one penny.

"Item. He is to pay the tenth calf or if he breed any he is to pay for
them but one half penny aplece for the fall and the like for every colt,
one penny, and if the owner kill any calves then he is to pay the vicar
or curate the right shoulder out of every calf and the tenth shilling
out of the price of every suckling calf he selleth, and if the owner
hath but seven calves yet he is to pay one calf and to receive bhack by
the minister one penny and one farthing.

"Item. 0f sucking plgs the owner is to choose two and the vicar to
choose the third and to fetch him away when he is eatable between a
fortnight and three weeks old and to pay one out of ten and so of seven
and to receive back a half penny and a farthing.

"Item, Out of the withy beds, the owner or renter is to pay tithe of a
kind 1f he do not agree for 1t and the like to be paid out of the
coppices whereof the wood is sold out of the parish.

"Item. The tenth of the wool of the lamhs that were bred and fallen in
the parish, to be taken at St Mark's tide, the wool at the Sheer time of
every ten lambs, the owner to choose two and the curate the third, and
also for every seven to pay and receive one penny farthing, and if above
ten and not seventeen, he the owner to pay for every one abhove ten, six
* gee List of clergy from "St Luke's Parish Church”.

Later revelations will 1include a wife Joan and a son FNathanlel, neither
of whom are mentioned in the parish register!
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farthings apiece. He is also to have the tentk goose, and for seven
topay a tithe goose and to receive three farthings, and for above ten
and not seventeen to pay so many farthings to be taken in like manner at
Lammas. ~ '

"Ttem. The curate to have out of every dry sheep that is wintered only
in his parish, or wool according to the time the wool grew here only a
tithe in money, and every ewe and lamb winter'd here according to the
falling here, the tenth and the seventh paying back a penny farthing,
and 1f the lamb fall not here, then he pay only for the growith of the
waol of the ewe as for dry sheep.

*Ttem, Concerning, the fruits of the orchard, the vicar or curate is to
bave the tenth in kind and if it be not compounded by measures to be
about the time of gathering thereof. .

"Item. He is to have of any greater fowl as Turkey or Peacocks, his
tenth in kind when they are eatable.

“Item. Of honey, wax, he is likewise to have his tenth about the time of
the taking of them." .

and then a list of charges for church pffices:

"Item. For church goling of women: five pence.

"Item. For every wedding: twelve pemnce.

*Jtem. For asking of a banner: six pence

"Jtem. For every burial in the chancel: six and eight pence.”

"By us, this 4 Decr 1613, Richard Phillpott minister,
Churchwardens: Henry Rems. Toblas Pope.
Witnesses: John Green, Black Street
[srael Glesny
John Green, senr. [ BRO P/StLB/V/2]

“Church going" was more commonly known as "churching" - the ceremony of
thanksgiving after childbirth. Baptism was presunmably free. Marriage,
then as now was costly. Sixpence for putting up the banns and a shilling
for the wedding. And as for burial im the church, six and eightpence was
beyond the means of all bar the very rich. There is no mention of a
charge for common burial in the churchyard, but I cannot believe it was
canmpletely free, '

On the same day, Richard also recorded the situation with regard to the
glebe lands, where confusingly he states he has been here a mere “"forty
years and more".

"A terrier indented of all Glebe Lands, Houses, Orchards, Gardens,
Grounds, Backsides and others with the Tythes, Oblations, that doth
belong to the parish church of Brislington within the diocese of Bath
and Wells and now in the hands and use of Richard Phillpott, minister
and hath baen for forty years and more, and likewise was to divers
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ministers before him, and our time how long we know not, being termed a
Donative as we have heard by us whose names are here subscrlbed dated
thig 4th Day of December 1613.

"First. To the same churchwardens and minister belongeth a House, one
Ground called. a garden or backside with all contayned, the 4th part of
.an aker by estimation and all such tithes as the sald minister received.
Videlicet of Personal and Mind Tythes or by what tytle men call them by
which is or cught to be mantayned and Repayred by the churchwardens from
tynme to tyme. The bounds of the Yard to be maintayned by the Minister so

far as the grounds of the said house ...,..." etc.

Is: Glesny _ R Phillpott

John Green the elder John Phelps

Henry Rems 1} - John Green of Black Street

Tabias Pope }churchwardens" ) [ibid]
1614

June 27

Anthony son of William Roache, collier of Brislington, apprenticed to
Christopher Powell, weaver and his wife Joan. '

(Anthony was another who changed his mind, and on September 14 was
turned aver to Richard Barrnes, notary public and his wife Mary.l [ibidl

July 1 :

William son of Israel Gleson, generosus [ie gentleman], of Brislingtonm,
apprenticed to Thomas ¥ebb, mercer and his wife Hargery. (ibidl
July 21

Thomas son of John Pope, husbandman of Brislington, apprenticed to
Edward Harding, shearman, and his wife Alice. . [ibidl

September 13
Thomas son of John Clarke, husbandman, deceased, late of Brislington,

apprenticed to John Corey, clothier, and his wife MNary. f1bid]
Octaober 1

Richard son of Richard Woodman, husbandman of Brislington, apprenticed
to Mary, the widow of Robert Goldsmith, as a clothworker. [ibid]
Will, William Shepherd of Brislington. [SRO, D/D/Ctl
1615

January 19

The Bishep's Visitation met a delegation of villagers concerned about
"irregular preaching and catechizing......at Brislington", which

reflects the rise of Puritanism. Sir Franclis Popham owned the living,

but he had "falled to provide for preachers", a mysterious state of

affairs, as Richard Phillpott was still incumbent, though age and
- perhaps infirmity may have rendered him less effective.

[ 8RO, D/D/Ca 191 & 194, Comperta 1615, passim, quoted

D.Underdown, "Revel, Riot & Rebellion",p79
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A common wf 200 aofés,fcalled Bristleton Heath was deemed to be part of
the Chase of Kingswood, with the coalmines there. {LA17c]

November 2
Thomas son of John King, husbandman deceased, late of Brislington,

apprenticed to lLewis Jones, clothworker and his wife Jane, [ BAR]
Will, William Coxe of Brislington ‘ (SRO D/D/CH]
¥ill, Ralph Orchard of Brislington [ibid]
1616

March 4

William son of Thomas Day, yeoman of Brislington, apprenticed to Charles
Hearnes, barber surgeon, and Mary his wife. "The father bound in the sum
of £5." [1bidl

April 7

Mrs Jane Seward, described as a gentlewoman, complained to the Bishop
that she had been "attacked with great vioclence® in church, just as she
was about to take her seat for divine service. The person she accused
was none other than the vicar's wife, Joan Phillpott, who had "pushed
- her with her elbow in a strict and violent manner" and she was "so much
bruised and waxed sorely 111" that she had to take to her bed. She
produced witnesses, Henry Dike, and another member of the Brislinagton
establishment, Ursula Wickham.

The Bishop found the ocase proved, and Joan was "admonished". The
offender was obliged to confess and ask pardon of the injured person in
the vestry immediately after morning prayer before the minister,
churchwardens and other witnesses. On the same day, and it can only
have been deliberate to cause the maximum embarrassment, the Seward
family brought their latest addition, ©baby Bartholomew, son of
Bartholomew, to church to be christened by the Rev Richard Phillpott!

| [SRD D/D/Ca 196. PRStLE]
It is fairly obvious that fiery Joan was much younger than the venerable
Richard. I suspect, that starting his clerical life as a celibate
priest, he walted to see the lie of the land, and the end of dangerous
ecclesiatical upheavals before risking a wife. Even Queen Elizabeth,
though Protestant, was said to abhor married clergy.

April 15
William son of John Clarke, husbandman, of Brislington, apprenticed to
John Brook, cooper, and Matilda his wife. EBARI
April 23

The wife of Morgan Jones, alleged that Arthur Brocke had slandered her.
Slanders, generally of a sexual nature could only be redressed by
complaint to the Bishop's Court. A good name might assume even greater
significance if 1t was a person's only possession, William Cooke
delivered the Bishop's response threea months later, Arthur was
admonished and told to pay Hrs Jones's expenses, [SRO D/DP/Ca 196!
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June 8

Villiam son of William Bolter, of Brislington, husbandmwan, apprenticed
to John Gibbons, baker, and Margaret his wife. [ BARI
June 18 )

More embarrassment when Thomas Ifield [or Ithells] was reported to the
Bishop, accused of impropriety with Maria Greene, the wife of Jokn
Greene. They were spotted by Thomas's wife Saralk in doubtful
circumstances under a hayrick, and other witnesses confirmed “they have
been seen in the evenings very late together in the sheep folds, and in
the mornings very early, when they converse suspiciously." Complete
rubbish, sald Thomas, protesting with "great vehemence". It was all
totally innocent. They were discussing "the penning of sheep." The
Bishop, who probably had to sternly silernce laughter in court, whilst
suppressing a small chuckle of his own, found the case proved. Thomas
was admonished "not to further molest Maria Greenel(SRO D/D/Ca 1961

July 16
Thomas Daniel brought a late complaint, accusing William Skidmore of
“chiding and brawling seven or eight weeks ago in the churchyard, and

calling him knave." Villiam was admonished, [ikid]
August 23

Martha, the daughter of William Taye, dyer of Vinterbourne, apprenticed
to Israel Gleson, notary public and his wife Alice, - [ BAR]

[The Glesons were currently our most notewarthy resident gentry. Martha
was to learn "the art and mystery of housewifery".l

October 22 :
John son of Richard Blanch, yeoman of Brislington, apprenticed to Thomas
Stanford, carpenter, and his wife Anne. {1ibid]
Will, Agnes Whippey of Brislington. {SRO D/D/Ct]
1617

February 14

More evidence that our vicar had married late in life - Nathaniel the
son of Richard Phillpott, yeoman of Brislington, was apprenticed to
Richard Dariel, tailor and his wife Elizabeth. ' {ibid?

Nathaniel was presumably between 14 and 17 years old, and perhaps
therefore born 1in 1600. The description "yeoman" is misleading, and
probably refers to class rather than occupation. Later on Richard is
described - properly -~ Yclerk".

February 21
John son of William White, husbandman of Brislington, apprenticed to
William Yeamans, notary public and his wife Ann. [ibidl

1618

July 11

William Gleson of Brislington, generosus took out a licence to marry
Elinor Wickham of Keynsham, spinster. The bondsmen were Henry Woodsonm,
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of Wells, notary public, and Thomas Wickham of Keynsham, gentleman, the
bride's father. The marriage entry itself has not survived, either at
Brislington; or at Keynsham where the parish registers are missing
before 1629, The Vickhams were probably related to Jane Seward's friend,
Ursula Wickham. { 5RO, Wells licencesl

October 8
The will of John Greeme proved. This John 1s probably the man of that
name who appeared at John Lacy's Leet gathering in 1586 [see Brislington
Bulletins Il, and perhaps the father of the John Greene whose wife MNaria
was involved with Thomas I[thell. The testator was survived by his widow
Joan, and the overseers were members of the ubigquitous Daniel
family, Andrew and Thomas, yeomen. ]

[SRO Vells 22 Book Probates; D/D/Ct 3/21
November 24 '
John the son of John Gray, carrier, late Brislington, apprenticed to

William Harding, smith, and his wife Alice. [ BAR]
1620

April 5 .

Edward son of Richard Blanch, husbandman of Brislington, apprentliced to
Charles Taylor, cooper and his wife Elizabeth, [ibid]
“April 19 .

Elizabeth the c¢hild of Henry Mills, "mipister of the worde" was
christened at St Luke's. Vas Henry another one of those "irregulars"
who had caused the worry in 16157 [ PRSTLEI]
October 30

Nathaniel son of Richard Philipott, clerk of Brislington, apprenticed to
Thomas Hurtnoll, haberdasher, and his wife Elizabeth. The father bound
in the sum of £10. { BAR]

The sum of £1¢ was a fine imposed by an irritated committee for young
Nathaniel's change of mind!

1621
William Bourne, later incumbent at Brislington, was clerk at Queen
Charlton. [ PRQCI

1622, July 17
The will of Giles Ithell of the parish of Temple in Bristol weaver; he
left:

"ten shillings to be bestowed in penny loaves of bread to be given to
the poor on the day of my funeral"

"ten shillings to the poor people of the parish of Brislington"

"ten shillings to the Company of Weavers in the Citty of Bristol, and
personal bequests:

Brother Richard Ithell, 20 shillings

Brother Robert Ithell, 20 shillings

Brother Thomas [thell "my best cloake"

Sister Alice Halnes, the wife of Henry Kaynes of Brislington, ten
shillinge
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Glisson/Gleson family of Brislington.
{Sable or Bend arggnt, three mullets plerced Gulesl

. Thomas Glisson of Suffolk = daughter of Gourney

|

Joan Cooke of Bristol

-

T
Walter of Brigtol
[Chapter Clerk,
diocese of Bristol in 1556]

I ]
) 1 r !
Marion Gough [1] = Israel = {21 Alice d,o, James Buck Wn Elizabeth Mary
d.0, feorge of Hewelsfield Glos of Winterbourne = Un Ellys
aar pre 1616, died clebe
--------- | oo
Willian = Eleanor Vickham Ann Wickham
died Brislingten, pre 164 d,0, Thosas of Keynshan d,o, Thos = ¥n Tibbolt
. nar 11,7,1618 aar 18,1,1624

vidow in 1641, lay subsidy roll

| S - Ty

1
Israel = fMary - Willian Henry
bp Brislington June 1621 bp July 1623 bp Aug 1627
bur Brislinglon June 1680
L | St i i
Hary [srasl Hilliaa
bp 1647 bp 1643 bp 1661

nar Magdalen Tippett 15683 = [21 Willian Webb, 1691
bur Brislington Juna 1689

John = Ann Thomas = Hesler [Easier]
SR W———  preeedeaennne 1
Hary John [srael John

bp 1691 bp 1693 bp 1699 bp 1706
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Brislington, Lacy to Langton.

Son John Ithell, £10 when 21

Son Gyles Ithell, £10 when 21

Son James Ithell, £10 when 21

Son William Ithell, £10 when 21

Daughters Jahe and Marie Ithell, #£20 each, when 16, or omn the day of
their marriages, whichever sooner

A1l the rest of my goods and chattels, moveable and immoveable to my
wife Alice Ithell, and to be sole executrix.

Overseers, Father in law John Everett, and brother Thomas I[thell, and to
have ten shillings each for their trouble.

Also to son John, "my house by MNichells Lane where Lewes Jones,
ropeworker now dwelleth during my sister Alice Kaynes life."

witnesses: the marke of John Evereit, John Boulton and the mark of Thomas
Jenkins. '

Will proved at Bristol, 3 September 1622. - [ BROI

[It is intriguing that the legacles to the two girls were to be paid
when they were sixteen or married, whichever was first. A girl could be
married at twelve, but generally speaking youthful marriages were rare,
On average women married at around 26 years.

Giles Ithell was baptised at Brislington in 1585, and therefore died
aged 37. We last met him as a young apprentice, and noted that he
married Alice, his master's daughter., Readers of my book “The Simple
Annals of the Poor® will see that being unaware of Giles' death in 1622,
| made the mistake of believing that he was the man of the same name who
was taxed in Brislington 1in 1641. However, the will confirms that this
Giles, and Thomas, of the sheep pens, whose relationship is shown by a
dotted line on the Family Tree in "Simple Annals" were brothers. '

1623 '
The Gleson family, originally from Suffolk, were this year granted the
right to bear Arms by the Herald's Visitation of Somerset.

Will of John Haines, sailor of Burstleton. [PCC Folio 102, Swannl

1624, Vinter and Spring.

#The settling of Jokn Merryweather". John from Bedminster rented a house
in Brislington. He ignored an order to leave within 20 days, and
managed to stay put two years, at which point, citing "squatters'
rights", Justice Hutton declared he could not be turned out, Brislington
ratepayers appealed at Ilchester in 1624, after which he was at last
sent back to Bedminster. {SRS QS.21.1.1623/4,6.4, 16241

[Despite this inauspicious beginning, a Merryweather family - though if
descended from John, I cannot say, later became established 1in

Brislington. Several becane churchwardaens! ]

Will, Timothy Sellwood of Brislington. [SRO B/D/CtI
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16249
January 18 2
A marriage licence between William Tibbott of Keynsham, husbandman and
Ann Wickbam of Brislington, spinster, the wedding to be at Keynsham. The
two bondsmen were VWilliam Whiting, glover of Wells, and William Gleson
of Brislington, gentleman, the bride's brother in law,

[SRO Wells licence, 18.1.1624/51

Will, Margery Collens, widow, of Brislington. [SRO D/D/Ct]
1626

May 13

Walter son of John Sampson, yeoman of Brislington, apprenticed te Juohn
White, shoemaker and his wife Ann. [ BAR}
Vill, John Sampson, husbandman of Brislington.- [SRO D/D/CEL
1627

April 10

John son of Barthomolomew Seward, generosus of Brislington, apprenticed
to John Collins, glover and Sarah his wife. [ibid]
April 27

A  marriage licence between = William Edmunds, of Kingsweston,

Gloucestershire, husbandman, and Joan Pope of Brislington, spinster.
"The man hath taken ocath that he 1z 24 years of age and hath lived from
his father since he was 21, and hath maintained himself without help
from his fatber." Bondsmen John Hedges of Bristel, weaver and Robert
+«+.. of same. They were married at Brislington on April 29.

[SRO Wells licences, 27.4,1629, PRStLB.)
Kovember 12
William son of William Hill, husbandman of Brislington, apprenticed to
James VYathen, pinmaker and his wife Mary. { BAR]

1627-8, Wells Sessions

Order made for "the settlement of John Maynard, an impotent person of
Brislington, that he have lived in the parish for the space of vne year,
now last past and upwards. Thomas Danyell, one of the overseers refused
to provide for him." There were several Maynards living in Brislington,
and hopefully one of them managed to put him up. [ SRS Q51

1628
February 2 7
A marriage licence between Edward Harsell of the City of Bristol, -
goodsmith [sic] & Elizabeth Griffen, widow of Brislington. Bondsmen were
Hugh Mead, of Wells, pewterer and Henry Elliott of Bristol, merchant.
The marriage was to be at Brislington, but no entry has survived.

' [SRO Wells Licences, 5.2.1627/8}
February 12
The Will of John Everett, weaver of Brislington, proved in London.

John Everett.....sick in body....etc left

Ten shillings for a funeral sermon

Thirteen shillings to the Company of Veavers, "at my burial®
Five shillings to the church at Brislington
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To my apprentices, Richard Ithell and Anthony Corte, ten shillings
aplece

To my servant, Mary Caynes, forty shillings

To Marie Ithell, daughter of Giles Ithell, £10, to be paild at the age of
15 years, and the house where Robert Ithell dwelleth in Temple Street,
City of Bristol, three years after my decease, Then three pounds a year
to her daughter,

Ta Jane Ithell, daughter of Giles, £10 at the age of £15, and the house
if Marie should die without i1ssue; 1f Jane should die without issue,
then to Katherine her sister,

To Giles I[thell, son of Glles, £5 at age 21

To James Ithell, son of Giles, #5 at age 21, and the house where Anthony
Cooke dwelleth in Temple Street, paying 20 shillings apiece to the
Company of Weavers.

To William I[thell, son of Giles, £5 at age Z1

To Richard Ithell, son of Giles, £5H at age 21

To Robert Ithell, son of Giles, £5 at age 21

To Katherine Ithell, daughter of Robert, £5 at age 18

To Elizabeth Ithell, daughter of Robert, #£b at age 18

I make Marie my wife, and Alice my daughter whole executrices of my
goods, and Thomas Ithell of Brislington and Robert Ithell, my son in
law, as overseers, and them to have ten shillings apilece for thelr
trouble. More it is my will that the Mayor of Bristol, and father of the
orphans shall have nothing to doe with this last will, or any legacies
berefrom conveyed.

Signed John Everett. Witnesses Robert Ithell, Richard Hobin.
[ BRO Great Orphan Books, Feb 12 1627/8]

It 1s pleasing that John thought so much o0f his granddaughters,
particularly the eldest to whom he left a house in trust for her awn, so
far hypothetical, daughter., Alice, his only child, was herself the
mother af nine little Ithells, for we see from the will that after
Giles' death, she married his brother Robert. Thomas Ithell, her brother
in law, crops up agaln as overseer and even Mary Caynes, the servaant may
have been a relative, faor Alice Caynes, nee Ithell [married to Henry
Caynes at Brislington in 16141 was the sister of Giles, Robert and
Thomas. Richard Hobin, the witness, may have been Richard Holbin of
Brislington, apprenticed to a shearman irn 1608.

It must be asked if the Mayor had personally caused offence - or did the
City Fathers, willy nilly, impound goods and chattels for the upkeep of
the orphans, if not sewed up tightly in a valid testament?

1629
March 19
James son of Jeremy Gray, yeoman of Brislington, apprenticed to Thomas

Prestwood, weaver, and his wife Elizabeth. [ BAR

In this year, the period of "Personral Rule" began, in which Charles I,
believer in the Divine Right of Kings, dispensed with the nuisance of
Parliament. At least one Brislington person was outraged erough to speak
out: '
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April 14 - 16 :

Court in session at Ilchester. "Whereas John Willilams is now remayning
in his Magesties CGaole at Ivelchester for speaking high and haynous
words against the Kings Magestie as this court is enformed and that he
hath at the time of his commitment certain moneys and diverse bills and
bonds sufficient to relieve him in the time of his durance in prison
taken from him by one Andrew Daniel of Busselton, being bayliffe of the
sail there, it was thought fitt that Francis Baber, esquire, one of His
Mats. justices of the Peace within the county will be pleased to take
the same into his consideration and provided they be mnot embezzled and
that John Williams may bave reasonable maintenance out of the same
during his imprisonment as Mr Baber shall think fitt." [ SRS QS

Unfortunately, there is no note of the exact "high and heinous words" of
this malcontent, or what eventually became of him.

1630

May 10

Giles san of John Green, husbandman, late of Brislington, apprenticed to
William Johns, tallor, and his wife Jane, [ BAR}
June 8

. Marriage Licence between Thomas Danlell of Brislington, yeoman, and
Susan Deane nf the same place, spinster. Bondsmen Roger Dean, husbandman
and Henry Vestcott, yeoman, both of Brislington. The marriage took place

at St Luke's the same day. [SRO VWells Licences 8.6.1630, PRSLB]
August 19

The will of Thomas Daniel proved, with administration granted to his son
Thomas. [ YBP]
1631

Richard Phillpott the vicar, by now about 97 years old, was replaced by
Oliver Chivers, aged 33, "a poor scholar" from Wiltshire, B4, MA [(Oxonl.
There is no further allusion to Richard's wife or son; nothing about
his years of service nor bis personal longevity. His death is not
recorded at Brislington and I wouldn't be surprised, if he 1is not still
living quietly in some country parsonage. '

September 17

A marriage licence issued by the Bishop of Bath and Wells instructs
Alice Bradlie "not to marry with any man other than William Daniell, son
of Andrew, t1ll the said Daniell be called."” They were married the
following January 6 ["Villiam Daniell, junior and Alice Bradley, widow"l
at St Luke's. The peculiar wording of the licence makes me wonder if
perbaps Alice had more than oOne suitor. There may have been minor
putrage too at the lack of a vdecent interval”. Her late husband's will
still awalted probate. [see belowl [SRO Wells Licsl

December 8

Hiward Smith of Swainewick, near Bath married Susanna Seward, daughter
of Bartholomew. [ PRStLB]
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1632

Religious contraversy continued to grow The extreme Protestants
{"Puritansg"l demanded a return to a pure form of religion, with an end
te ritual and ceremony. Bishops were "the limbs of anti-Christ".
Plainness was seen as more godly than show; fasts were to be preferred
to feasts, In some parish ochurches the congregation was promised
hellfire and damnation on Sunday afterncons by visiting lecturers.
Other communities clung to the old ways, the celebration of local wakes
and Church Ales, which commemorated the foundation of the church, in
which case, after evensong there was revelry, morris dancing and rictous
games, Beer flowed freely.

The prevailing mond was towards the former state, in March, the
Somerset Quarter Sessions banned Church Ales.

November 27
Probate of the will of Bartholomew Bradley of Brislington was granted to
his widow, Alice, who was now Mrs William Daniel. [ YBPI

1633

The King openly defied Puritanism by going some way to reinstate Sunday
merriment, albeit of +the "decent and sober" kind, by 1issuing a
“Declaration of Sports" which were allowed after service om Sunday

avenings.

September 17 - 19

Coal which had been mined in Brislington at least since the previous
century, was carried inte Bristol in the saddlebags of strings of
packharses, which churned up the simple unmetalled tracks.

Quarter Sessions at Bridgwater:

"Whereas the highways within the parish of Briglington are of late years
become very founderous and in decaye by means of the great resorte of
colliers with their horses to certaine cple pitts there....and whereas
the grate charge for repayring the said wales is wholly imposed upon the
occuplers of certain howses being but a third part of the parish who
have been lately presented at the Quarter Sessions for the decaye of the
sald wales, a charge which may equally arrise upon the whole parish."

Sir Francis Popham Kt, John Harrington and Francis Baber, or any two of
them were to investigate and present their results at the next sessions.

[SE3 @S]
Sir Francis Popham, Member of Parliament -~ a presently redundant
position - with an estate worth £10,000 a year was one of the wealthiest
men in the county. He still owned the living at Brislington.

1634

April 15 - 17 -

Somerset Sessions at Illchester. The three justices sald they had been

too busy to deal with the Brislington order to oversee road repairs,

They were requested to present their findings at the next sessiaons.
: {ibidl
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June 15 )

Thomas Clements, the son of John and Agnes was christened, an event in
its way as noteworthy as the christening of John Macy in 1566, for this
was the first time that the mother’'s name, excepting illegitimacy, was
recarded along with the father's. { PRStLBI

This may be a clue to the vicar, Oliver Chivers' position in the current
debate. Puritans believed that a woman existed in her own right, and not
simply as an adjunct te the nearest man, hence the power, slightly
later, of Quaker and Baptist women, who sometimes preached.

July 14
Oliver Chivers who was also curate at Queen Charlton, took an inventory
of the church fabric there. Perbaps St Luke's was similar:

“In the chancell, community table and rayles, A Broad Borney tablecloth
and a linnen tablecloth, both faire and fringed. A failre broad clothe
for the communion table. A Communion Cupp and cover, sllver, partely
guilded. A pewter flagon and plate for the bread and wine. A faire
surplis for the minister.

"In the bodie of the Church, two seates, one for the minister, th'other
for the Clarke, a faire walnscott pulpit with a silck cushion and two
-chests, a beear, a table for degree, a stone with a faire covering.

and the Books:

“A faire Bible of the last editiom.

Two common prayer books,

Bichop Jewslls works, the Book of Homeliles

A Book of Cannons and Injunctions.

A Bock of Statutes made 3rd Jacobe 1606

Prayers for the 5 November and the B August

Three more hooks for the Plauge +tyme, and for fasting, and for
thanksgiving uppon delivery from the- Pestilence,

*An old bottle for wine, and a case to keep the Communion Cup in)

Note that the congregation stood, apart from the minister and his
clerk. The very aged or infirm were perhaps allowed to lean against the
stone with a covering.

Oliver may have been preparing to move to Queen Charlton, for William
Bourne became our vicar in 1635.

September 30 — Uctober 2
Somerset Sessions at Bridgwater., The court was fed up with Popham &
Harrington, and appointed a revised committee to look into the matter of
the Brislington highways, Thomas Smyth, Francis Baber, William Cappell
and Anthony Stocker. They were also to report to the court with regard
to the yearly payment by Brislington parish to the poor of Pensford.

_ : i SRS QS|
{Why there should be a connection between Brislington and Pensford is a
nystery to me.)
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October

The King, still ruling without Parliament, was financially strapped. To
raise funds he intreduced "Ship Money". The Somerset seaports, with
Bristol and Gloucestershire, collected enough to provide a vessel of 800
tons. Charles was flushed with success.

16356

November 7

Administration of the effects of Mary Raydon, spinster of Brislingiton
granted to her mother, Ann Feere, alias Raydon. [ PCCAdmons, 1631-48, pl39]

The King extended the cpllection of Ship Money to inland districts., This
was a most unpopular move, In the wider theatre, John Hampden refused to
pay. "Village Hampdens" like Andrew Kaines and Samuel Mogges of
Brislington followed sult,

1636

" But first, Samuel Mogges was in the news when Elizabeth Stevens brought
a suit for defamatien of character against him. In June, James Feare
claimed he had been defamed by Joan Hill, and in her turm, Joan accused
the wicar, William Bourne. I have been unable to discover the nature of

these complaints! [SRO 34L Consist Text of Abstracts,[47]1
30 July 7 :

Andrew Kaines was reported by Samuel Tillie, the parish clerk, for not
paying his tithes. [ibid]
October

Charles 1 issued another writ for Ship Money. The people of Somerset
were amongst the worst payers in the country.

1637

Court at VWells. Brislington was to be relieved and discharged from its
payment af "fawer shillings®, the accents echoing across the centuriles,
per year for the relief of the poor of Pensford, previously imposed
during "the time of sickness" which may have been plague. [ SRS Q8]

Samuel Mogges refused his part in the upkeep of the highways, and was
taken to copurt by Nicholas Cowling, the overseer, Samuel was ordered to
do the work himself, or pay someone else to do it. Cowling said Mogges,
who was constable of +the Hundred of Keynsham, had annoyed him and
*divers others of the inhabitants of Brislington", with regard to the
payment of Ship Money,

Mention of the detested tax aroused the attention of the judiciary.
Samuel called a public meeting, and the whole thing got out of hand,
with tragic consequences.

April 18 - 21

Ilchester Sessions. "Vhereas there was an indictment preferred at these
sessions against Samuel Mogge, William Daniell, Laurence Keynes, Will
Sellwood, Raynold Matthews and John Archer, all of Brislington, for an
unlawful assembly at Brislington aforesaid, which indictment was not
found. And for that the court was told that there was a boy there killed
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in the sald assembly, whereupon the partyes were continued to the next
sessions. And for that it was alledged that the boy was not killed by
any of their company or by means of that assembly. John Harrington

“esquire to examine the truth of the Business and to certify the same at

the next sessions.” {SRE Q81

“The truth of the business" has not been located, at least not by me. I
have found nothing else about the boy who died, for no burial register
survives for this period.

At the same sessions, Roger Merryweather, perhaps the son of Jobn the
squatter, who had been bound parish apprentice to Thomas Daniell was to
be freed and discharged from his apprenticeship. No reason is recarded.

(ikid]
A parish apprenticeship should not be confused with the apprenticeships
of the civic rolls. A master was paid a small reward for taking a poor
orphan off the rates and into his employment. The work was gemerally of
the most menial kind. The most famous (fictional) parish apprentice was
Oliver Twist, several centuries later,

1638

April 16

The will of Elizabeth White, widow of Brislingtom, was proved by her son
George. L YBPI

September 26 ‘
Rev William Bourne was buried at Brislington., He was succeeded by Robert

Bacon.

November 30

Arthur Broocke of Brislington, yeoman leased land in Redcliffe Mead, in
the parishes of Bedminster and Redcliffe to John Veekes, also of
Brislington, husbandman. [ BRO 6609 (4>bl

Pecember 10

Robert Bacon, incumbent for less than a year, made good use of his short
time at Brislington by looking into the situation of the glebe lands as
Richard Phillpott had done before him:

"p +true mnote or Terrier of all the Glebe Lands, meadows, pasture,
grounds, gardens, orchards, houses, yards and other commoditys which are
held and taken to belang to Impropriate Parsonage and enjoyed time out
of mind by the curate or Minister there.

“The Parsomnage is said to be held by Sir Francis Popham, Knight and hath
a fayre house, a large barn and outhousing, yards, garden and orchard
and lands, meadows and pasture grounds thereunto belonging, being of
good value esteemed to be a yard land and a half and the tythe corn of
the whole parish,

"The curate or Minister have heard of our Predicissors all Privy Teythes
withln the Parish of Basterbrook according to the customs of the parish
and bath alsoc a small dwelling house containing two rooms below and two
above with a little garden and a yard before the house and the Herbage
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of the church yard. The House hath been long under propped whereby 1t
seems the wall is .faulty.

"Item. Ve neither know of have heard that any portions of tythes out of
this parish are either due to the impropriate parsonage or curate or
hath been received or claimed by either of them.

“"Rabert Bacon, Minister
Thf]l Ithell churchwarden

i now numbered among the great and good - youthful indiscretions

his marke apparently forgottenl

Nicholas Cowling churchwarden.” [P/StLB/V/2]
[ ¥hither Basterbrook?l

1639

From this year Brislington had no vicar of ite own, but was held jointly
with Keynsham by Thomas Codringtom, BA, MA, ([Oxonl, aged 26, son of
Richard Codrington of Doddington. In common with most other towns and
villages in the land, parish register entries dwindled, reflecting the
dangerous nature of the times. The church itself was under attack and we
owe the survival of the first register to the foresight and courage of
an unknown churchman or woman who rescued and hid it until more certain
times should come again.

January 28

The will of Bartholomew Seward, gentleman of Brislington was proved by

Susanna his widow ["relict"], He left £10 each to his daughters Joan and

Elizabeth, and mentioned his son John who had been apprenticed to a

Bristol glover in 1627. There was no note of his daughter Susanna who

was married to Edward Smith in 1631, and who therefore may have died in

the interim, or of Bartholomew's other children baptised at Brislington.
{ ASV YBPI]

April 5

Benjamin son of William Bourne, clerke, and Allice, baptised. [ PRStLBI]

Alice and her two boys, the second born seven months after his father's
death must have left the parish. They are heard of npo more.

May 6

Bargain and Sale, concerning land in Redcliffe Mead, Redcliffe Pit and
Bedminster, Arthur Brooke and John Weekes of Brislington to Thomas Smyth
of Long Ashton. [ BRO 6609 (4)c]
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Local constables continued in thelr thankless task of attempting to
raise taxes. '

1641

Lay Subsidy Roll. A list of Brislington taxpayers.
Nichplas Cowling L 1 Bleanar Gliston,wid,L 1
Glles Ithell & George White & L 1
Henry Wastfield L 1 John Vhite

Henry Vaughan,gent L 2 Samiel Mogge L 1
& Henry Leonard William Atwood L1
Villiam Cottrell L1 Henry Dike & L 1
William Tibbotts L 1 Thomas Selwaood

John Collins L 1 Richard Hall & L 1
Arthur Sanders L 2 Robert Blanch

Susan Seward, wid L 2 Thomas Ithell L 1
John Brock & Taby Pope L 1
John Cocke L1 Thomas Daniell L 1
John Feere L 1

Total collected was £8.16.0d. L = Taxed on lands, Nobody in Brislington,
it seems, was wealthy enough to be taxed on their goods. Tax payable was

eight shillings in the pound, which seems pretty steep.

1641
December 24 _
Giles Ithell and Alice VWest married at Keynsham. [ KPRI

1642

To the incredulity of the majority, and "by one accident after another",
the country slid into civil war between those who felt +that the king
could be trusted to rule, and those who belleved restraints should be
placed upon him. Religilous conservatives, who opposed radical reform of

the Church of England sided with the king's party against the Puritans

who wanted it abolished altogether.

On 23 October 1642, the armles of King and Parliament faced each other
at Edgehill.

Of Brislington during the years of the conflict, we know almost nothing.
We can conjecture that in addition to the pormal perpetual struggle of
finding enough to eat was added the compulsory burden of providing for
the troops of whichever side was locally in the ascendant. Fields and

‘livestock were very 1likely plundered by marauding bands. Sons and

husbands left home, seduced into taking up a "life of adventure" as
soldiers. [From the fact that they were pensioned after the Restoration,
we know that several local men joined up on the King's side.l In the
opposing camp sat Robert Wastfield, a Puritan zealot, who later on, in
the Commonwealth period was Brislington's sequestration officer.

Bristol, where the majorlty of the clitizens were indifferent, [{the
exceptions being a number of Royalist plotters, of whom two were

‘executed, and the fanatical Furitan women who were willing to "dead the
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bullets® of the King's Army with their bodies and those of their
childrenl, was twice takean by force., The city was occupled successively
by both sides. To add to the woe, plague visited several times during
the period.’ '

1643
September 18
Francis Maunsell, son of Richard of Busselton, buried at Keynsham. [ KER]

December 11
The inventory of Robert Ithell, of Temple, weaver, deceased, glves an
interesting insight into the wardrobe of the well dressed artisan:

Two paires of Breeches

Two doubletts Three Shirts

Two cloakes Six Bands

Two hatts Two must caps

Three Paire of Jerkins One paire of Bootes [ BROI
1644

14 Octaber, "in the 20th year of Charles", agreement between Henry
Vaughan of Caldicott in Monmouth, and Henry Leonard of Brislingtom,
yeoman, for the lives of Henry Leonard, and his children, Henry and
Hannah. (Sealed in the presence of Villiam Attwood, Henry Wastfield,
Israel Philpott, Henry Green,) {SRO DD/BR/th/W67/11

Meanwhile, the King's cause was golng badly.

1645
Royalist Army crushed at Naseby.

1646
Charles ]l surrendered to the Scots.

1647
Chartes I handed over %0 Parllament.

1648
New Model Army defeated Scots and Royalists.

Decpite Robert VWastfield [see belowl, Thomas Codrington, the vicar
Brislington shared with Keynsham, managed to ride out the religious
storm, for unlike many priests, he was apparently not dispossessed. [For
instance, during the second Roundhead occupation of Bristol, the Bishop,
Dr Howell, refused to quit. His house was attacked and the 1lead
stripped from the roof, leaving the occupants exposed to the elements.
Mre Howell died in childbirth, and her husband followed after a few
months, leaving ten orphaned children.]l Thomas Codrington's children
were baptised at Keynsham between 1648-57. I regret to say that before
1656, he ignores the part of his wife in the proceedings, and describes
the children as son or daughter of Mr Thomas Codrington., In March 1656,
to our surprise, their latest baby, Mary, is "daughter of Mr Thomas and
Mrs Hannah Codrington". The next child, Penelope, 1657, is “"daughter of
Mr Thomas and Mrs Codrington."
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1649
Charles 1 executed.VCramwell in Ireland.

Administration™of the estate of John Gonninge of Bristlington, granted

to his widow Margaret. [ ASY]
1650

George Parphrey of Brislington alias Busseton widower and Dennis Wall,
of Wells, widow, married at 8t Cuthbert's Vells. [ PR]

December 5
Deed, between John Lacy, esquire, of Shipton under Wychwaod and Richard
Pope of Brislington, basketmaker, in respect of a cottage and tenement
near the bridge held by William Sellwood, blacksmith, for the lives of
Richard Pope, Ann Pope his wife and Thomas Pope his brother. Signed in
the presence of Aaron Ithell, Robert Bennett, Charles Bramsby.

[ SRO DD/BR/tb/W67 /31

1651

Battle of Worcester. Cromwell master of all England.

1652

January 13

Assignment of a lease to land in Brislington from Thomas Jones to John
Bissicke, ‘ [ SRO DD/BR/tb/VWH7/7 1651/2]

The Baptist Church in Bristol, which bhad broken from the Church of
England in 1640, with a small meeting at Mr Hazard's, [his wife Dorathy
had been one of the women prepared to throw herself on the Royalist
guns], had already split into several factioms. From the Annals of the
‘Broadmead group in this year, news of a Brisliagton man:

"One of the members, Thomas Munday desired to goe and joyne himself to
the other church in Bristoll that were all baptized, having one Henry
Hynam for their teacher." "Divers reasonings" could not change his mind
and he was given liberty to depart. Brother Munday was received into the
Pithay Baptists in 1653. [ RCC]

Pot sherds bearing the date 1652 have been excavated at St Annpes,
indicating that that a pottery was in operation on the site from at
least this time. [ Pountneyl

1653
Cromwell Lord Protector of England.

Lease, Rowland Lacy, esquire, Lord of the Manor of Brislington, of
Shipton under Wychwood to Thomas Hort, alias Blacker of Brislington,
yeoman. [SRO DD/BR/tb/W67/4]

December 1

Lease from Rowland Lacy to Thomas Jones of Brislington, husbandman,
regarding land late in the tenure of Lawrence WYebb, blacksmith in the
Lives. of Thowas DBlanch, Joane his wife and Richard Byfield, the son of

joane, Mentioned also: Thomas Hall, Alice Hall widow, Dorothy MNaynard.
[1bid]
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1654

The Society of Friends came to Bristol. They were known derisively as
"Quakers® because thelr leader George Fox preached of trembling before
the sight. of God. Their belief 1s that every individual has direct
communication with God who will guide him into the ways of Truth. Robert
Vastfield, a St Anne's potter was "one of the first that received the
Truth* and passionately so. He was soon followed by other Brislington

people.

Lease of a cottage "new and latelie built in 1616" on the waste ground
divided in two by Rowland Lacy, and granted to Thomas Sellwood of

Brislington, labourer. [ SRO DD/BR/th/W67B/B1
Will of John Collins, yeoman. [ PCC Fol 2481
January 20 ,
Sarah the daughter of Thomas and Ann Munday was baorn at Brislington.

[ PRStLEBI
1655

September %

Robert Wastfleld went into the church at Keynsham today, “the Lord's Day
and turning himself to the congregation said 'l charge you in the name
of God to leave off your false worship.' Then addressing M¥r Fossett, the
preacher, and Mr Codrington, the minister, he further charged them in
the name of the Lord to leave aff seducing the people, adding many more
words to the same effect.” [XLI SRS Vol 28, QS in the Commonwealthl

September 20

Strict rules were applied regarding ale houses. On this day, a licence
was issued to Joan Daniel. Keeping a public house was one of the few
careers open to women, yet clearly licences were much more usually
granted to males, for on the common form all the way through she is
described "he".

“Yee whose names are subscribed, Justices of the Paace for this County
doe hereby Lycence and allow Joan Daniel of Brislington in the same
County, widow, to keepe a Common Alehowse and victualling in the howse
where he now dwelleth for one whole year next ensuing the date hereof
and noe longer for that he suffer noe unlawfull games or other 111 unto
or order to be used or kept 1in or neere his howse but shall well and
truly observe all and any of the Articles hereunder written under our
hands and seales this xxth Day of September 1655,

ffirst he shall not suffer any person [not being a traveller or of
his familyl to be and remaine in his howse upon the Lord's Day or
dayes af publique humiliation or thanksgiving.

2. he shall not suffer any of his neighbours children or Apprentices or
servants to be at any tyme in his howse.

3. he shall not suffer any person whatscever to be drunk in his howse or

to continue typling at any time centrary to the Law nor after nine
of the Clock at night.
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4, he shall not entertaine or harbour any vagrant, idle or suspicious
persons nor receive any goods offered by such to be sold but shall
forthwith acquaint the officer with the same.

5. be shall nffer and sell a full Ale quart of the best Ale or beere for
a penny and two Quarts of the small for a penny and soe after the
same rate and that by lawfull nmeasure.

6. he shall not refuse to sell his Drink out of Doores to his neighbours
of the poorer sort at the prices aforesaild.

7. Lastly he shall from time to time informe the next Justice of the
Peace as of all such as [to his knowledgel shall sell Ale ar Beere

without Lycence. Ric: Jomnes

Rob: Long.

- [ SRO1
Michaelmas

“Whereas there was lately a child found under a roof in Bufsleton in the
County of Somerset, and 1s supposed borne at the Blackmore's Head, in

Turkey Street, in this City.....it is ordered +that it shall be
maintained by the parish of Bufsietor and half charge to Bt Thomas
parish." [BRO (04447 (1) Sessions Book, 16%53-711

Neither child nor mother is i{dentified. For certaln she was not
Katherine Seymore, for she killed her baby, and was sentenced to death
by hanging at the same sessions. Katherine's former lover, the chiid's
supposed father was sentenced to three months and to provide sureties
for his future good conduct.

1656
Cottage or tenement, late Webbs, conveyed from Rowland Lacy to Thomas
Munday of Brislington. quarryman. [SRO DD/GL, 111

Lease, Rowland lLacy to John Lansdowne of Brislisgton, rough mason.
[SRO DD/BR/tb/W67/6]

Hay 26 _
"Israel Glesson executor of Alice Glesson, deceased, complaineth against
Richard Cause in a plea of debt upon the demand of threescore pounds.
The defendant bayled the 29th May. Compalnant withdrew: witness hils
hand, Is: Gleson. Israel also claimed against Christopher Hollister in
respect of "threescore pounds" and then withdrew this claim too.

[ BRO, 04412 - Pile Poudre Court Booksl
November 8
Assignment between two St Anne's potters, John Bissicke to Robert
Bennett pf land at 3Brislington he had from Thomas Jones in 1651,

Presumably with the proceeds, John Bissicke and his wife Anrn bought a.

small tenement from Rowland Lacy. [SRO DD/BR/th/VW67/7]
1657 .

Will of Tobias Pope, yeomen. [PCC Fol 1771
Nay 3 :

"Messuage or Tenement commonly known as St Annes Chappell with a garden
and bankslde thereunto adjoining being within the parish of Brisslington
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- Brislington, Lacy to Langton

with lands, meadows, pastures, orchards, gardens, etc", sold by Bir
Rowland Lacy aof Shipton under Wychwood to George White, a Bristol draper
and John Willoughby,: a merchant. The chapel was previously occcupied by
Robert Blanch, and now by his widow, The sale included "the pill, with a
meadow to the passageway there adjoining® [St Anne's Ferry perhaps?l]
"called Elme Hayes, with a water mill and all streams of water connected

to it". [SRO DI/BR/tb/W67/8]

May &

Sale of land at Brislington, including Game's tenement, by Rowland lacy

to Robert Bennett. [ SRO DD/BR/tb/W67/7]

May i1

Sale by Aaron Ithell to John Bissicke of meadaw land called "The Moore".
[ibidl]

September 7 :

We eavesdrop on a small group of Brislington people who have left us a
fascinating account of trouble in their lives as told in an "examination
of James Provis, Ann Pope, Joan Bungy, Elizabeth Peasley and Thomas
Peasley, tithingman, all of Brislington, by Robert Long concerning the
theft of sheaves of corn from Ann Pope in July":

“"James Provie said he was a servant to his grandmother Ann Pope. Finding
there were several of her sheaves of corn missing he went to the
tythingman to complain, and they found in the house of Villiam Bungie,
labourer, two dozen and seven of wheat sheaves lying over the bedstead.
He believed it was the wheat stolen from his grandmother's and demanded
of Joane, the wife of W¥William Bungie how they came to be there. She
say'd her children brought them home and he asked her then where her
husband was, and she answered that he was gone into Wiltshire to find
work.

“Ann Pope, also examined said that on July 7th last she went with the
tythingman to look for wheat stolen from her close and they, coming to
the house of Robert Peasley, labourer, to search for the sheaves,
Blizabeth wife of Robert Peasley say'd that she did fetch these wheat
sheaves out of the close and had carried three sheaves untoc William
Stevens house, unto the other corm, meaning the two dozen and seven
sheaves taken out of the house of Joane Bungie and carried by the
tythingman and James Provis, and put in the house of William Stevens.
And that she Elizabeth Peasley, did say that Joane Bungy did tempt and
intice her to go along with her and after much persuasion she was drawn
ta go along with her, the say'd Joane Bungy, and a boy of Joane's to
steal the corn. And Elizabeth begged of this examinant to be good unto
her, for if her Husband should know, he would even kill her for it.

"Thomas Peasley, tythingman of Brislington taken upon oath saild that
going with Ann Pope, widow, to the house of Robert Peasley to search for
some sheaves of corn stolen from Ann Pope, he heard Elizabeth Peasley
say 'FPray Gammer Pope forgive me and I will never do so more, for if my
husband should know of 1it, he would even kill me', and the say'd Ann
Pope replys, 'l fargive you with all my heart.'
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"Examination of Elizabeth, wife of Robert Peasley, taken September 8th
who denies she confessed any such words to Ann Pope, save that she had
no hand in stealing the corn.

"Examination of Joan Bungy, who saith that her young children going to
lease corne in the fields they brought home certain sheaves of wheat
with them and they told her the sheaves were give to them and she toaok
them and laid them over the bedstead.

[(Signed] Robert Long." > [SRQ Q/SR 95 I11

And there it ends, It does not tell us the outcome, but it does tell us
& great deal about our people. We do not know if Janmes Provis was
illiterate, but he was certainly not innumerate, able to count in
dozens, to tell immediately the exact number of sheaves which were
missing from his grandmother's harvest. The wheat seems to have been
taken to one barn, William Stevens'., Vas this the tithe harn where
everybody's harvest was taken? We may also note that three of the main
characters were husbandless women.

First, the widowed "Gammer" or Grandmother Pope, a farmer in her owa
right, whase daughter Mary had married Thomas Provie in 1623, James, who
worked for his grandmother was an offspring of this marriage, baptised
in 1636, making him 19 at the time of the incident.®

Joan's family, variously Bungie, Bungy, Bungay, make no appearance in
the parish register until the baptism of Mary daughter of William and
Mary in 1678. Vhether this is Jpan's husband with a new wife, or a later
generation, 1t is not possible to say. It is clear however that Joan
must have been having a very difficult time, coping with two or three
children as a single parent, whilst her husband was away in Wiltshire,
From her testimony, we know it was current for children, and probably
women too, to glean in the fields. Poor Joan may have been as Ruth amid
the alien corn, but less lucky.

And what of Elizabeth, who changed her tune? She too was alone, and
awaited 1n fear and trembling for her spouse’'s return. [It was quite
lawful for a man to beat his wife, provided the stick was no more in
circumference than his thumb, and it did not annoy the neighbours.] From
the parish register we know that Robert was aged 26, and that he and
Elizabeth had a two year old daughter Sarah who had been baptised at St
Luke's. Later I shall suggest a reason for bhis absence, He,
significantly in view of this later information, commenced to baptige
further children from 1662, but as his wife is not named, it is not’
possible to discover whether these are also Elizabeth's. Thomas, the
tithingman, aged 24, [baptised 1633], was Elizabeth's brother in law,
which to say the least must have caused both considerable embarrassment.

Robert Long was the same Justice who issued Joan Danlel's Alehouse
licence in 1655.

1658 _

Tanuary 7

"Evidence of John Browning of Queen Charlton that on January 3, he saw
Jobhn Milkins of Bristilton carry a band gun under his cloak and
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presently he shot it off and ran to take up a bird, The sald Milkins
being examined declined to say ought thereunto. Before Robert Long."

S [ SRS s Jan 1697/8)
September 3 - .
Oliver Cromwell, devastated by the death of his favourite daughter, and
utterly worn out, died. He had nominated his son Richard to succeed, but
Richard, nicknamed Tumbledown Dick preferred the life of a country
gentleman, and who can blame him? The canting piety of the Puritans who
had the ear of the ruling party had already begun to provoke discontent.
Theatres were closed, sports forbidden. [The suppression of wicked blood
sports, such as bear baiting and cock fighting, itself an excellent
thing, was not due to any sympathy with the abhused animals, but on the
grounds that enjoyment was sinfull. For a time even Christmas itself was
abolished. This was probably the last straw. The country began to look
once again towards a monarch, provided he did not rule without
Parliament, and there was no persecutiecn of Puritans.

November 29
James Cogin of Brislington became an indentured servant to Francis
Parsone in Barbades for three years.

[Bristal Servants to Fareign Plantations, 1654-1686]

This is the first mention of the name of a later well known Brislington
family, the Coggins.

In this year, Robert Collins, a potter, husband of Mary Provis, the
sister of James, who now lived at Queen Charlton, purchased a two acre
field called Little Mpor, bounded on one side by the Avon river and on
the other by Ram's Cliff, which later became the site of Bees's Tea
Gardens. Pountney says this land was for withy beds which would supply
packaging for his fragile products, all of which had to be transported
by pack horse.

Deed of exchange issued between Rowland Lacy and Israel Gleson in
respect of land in the West Field. { SRO DD/GL/21}

December 20 :

Last will and testament of Robert Bennett of Brislington, gallypot maker
mentions: '

Wife Alice.

Sone Robert and John, under 21

Daughter Mary, under 18

Brother John

Sigter Elizabeth Morgan; her son William Morgan and her three daughters
Robert mentions ownership of four tenements, one let to Henry Keymnes,
one to Jahn Game, a third in reversion to Em Farthing and the last "the
tenement I now dwell in, lately in occupation of William Browne."

Robert Wastfield and William Baugh were appointed overseers; Thomas Byam
and John Biswicke were witnesses.

The will was proved by Alice Bennett, the relict and sole executrix,

December 9, 1659. Alice later married Sclomon Huntingdon, a Bristol
mariner, but appears to have carried on the Brislington pottery.
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1659 S
Robert Vastfield issued "A True Testimonial of falthful Witnesses
Recorded..... . ...wherein the wicked designs and cruel practices of

several of the rulers, priests and people in the County of Summerset are
plainly discovered by those who are numbered amongst those persecuted,
imprisoned and reproachfully called Quakers. Also a few words to

magistrates, priests and people that they may take warning..... by a
foliower of the Lamb in the war agalnst the beast, and the false
prophet......" and so on and on, [Sum Bibliography Bath Ref Libl

[ The Quakers rejected Calvinist teachings which basically said that God
had already made up his mind who was bound for heaven and who wasn't,
Their anti-authoritarian views — they refused to take off their hats to
anyone, and called other people 'thee' and 'thou' regardless of class -
upset Parliament.l

Deed between Roland Lacy, Samuel Clement of Bristol, salter and Thomas
Birkoff of the same, grocer on the one hand, and a roll call of
Brislington {malel tenantry on the other:

Nicholas Cowling Israel Gleson William Baugh

Beyam Hartwell Richard Gray William Tibbett
Robert Bennett John Biswick Charles Jones
George Vhite William Crabb - Richard Pope, ropemaker
Thomas Daniell Thomas Ithell Richard Pope, basketmaker
George Feare Aaron Ithell Henry Kaines
Thomas Heathcott Thomas Mundy Anthony Cork
Thomas Phelps Richard Green Richard Crabb
Lawrence Bricker William Pailne John Kinge
Thomas Peaslie
In respect of sundry messuages. [SRO DD/BR/tb/V67/11
August 9

Lease of a withy bed by John Bissicke to George Huntington.

[ 8RO DD/BR/V67/7]
October 22
John Bissicke, potter of Brislington, originally came from London. His
last will and testament:
Ann, his wife, to be sole executrix.
loving friends, Nicholas Cowling and William Baugh.
Two acres of The Noore bought from Hemnry Kaines to Richard Bissicke, his
kinsman, a potter in Southwark, Surrey. In event of Richard's death to
another London kinsman, William Shelton, a tailer. :
The messuage in occupation of Richard Milkins to Elizabeth Shelton,
William's daughter
The meadow, 1% acres of The Moore, bought from Aaron Ithells, where John
Rollins dwells, to wife Ann
Alice Bennett to have the tenement held by Em Farthing, but to glve wife
Ann Bissicke £5,

Apart from s=mall bequests to Villiam MNorgan and Thomas Byam, the
raemainder to various kin of the Bissicke and Shelton families,

Witnesses lsrael Gleson, Richard Tony, Roger Roydon, Thomas Hartwell.
The will was proved April 4, 1660,
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1660

February 7 P

The copyhold purchased by Robert Collins, potter, from Rowland Lacy.
"heretofore in the tenure of Alice Pope, widow", supplies interesting
field names: :

The Orchard Garden and Backside [1 acrel

Batchy Lease [1% acres]

Paddock [1 acrel

Quabby Lease [2 acresl

Longfurlong [ 1% acres]

Wetlands in the Westfield [% acrel

Lowerhaverland [2 acres

Middlehaverland in the Westfield [¥ acrel

March 20 _

Mordecal Boadone married Susan, the daughter of Anthony and Alice
Sanders. This was the first wedding at St Luke's since April 13, 1640,
It is a sign of the changes that were now almost complete that it was
not necessary to wait for the pext event:

May 29 -

Charles II landed at Dover on his thirtieth birthday. The monarchy was
restored, along with the Anglican church. 411 those who would not join
were called "non conformists" or "dissenters", and among these were the
old Puritans, like Calvinists, Presbyterians and Baptists, and the newer
Quakers. Anglicanism became the state religion and socially associated
with the uvpper classes, the lady and gentleman of the manor seated in
their special pew, with the body of the congregation made up of their
dependents, farmers and labourers. Dissenters took pride in thelr
independence, appointed their own ministers, and their meeting houses
belonged to themselves., They were not necessarily poor artisans, and
come became very wealthy indeed. Whilst non~confornity was mostly
confined to towns, many villages, like our own had pockets of Baptists
and Quakers.

1661
December 12
Thomas lthell, Brislington, yeoman, bondsman at the wedding of John

Harding and Sara Tovey. [ BMLEI]

December 19
Richard Milkins of Brislington married Priscilla Allen [died 1675] of

same. Quaker Marriage, Somerset North Division. Q1]
1662
January 24

Marriage licence, William Daniell of Brislington, farmer and Elizabeth
Bowles of Nayle, Wiltshire; marriage to be at St Marks, alias le Gaunts,
Bristal, { BMLB 1661/21

June 26
...and between Jobn Baldwin of St Nicholas, pewterer and Ann Heathcott

of Brislington. {Bondsman Thomas A'deane, Bristol, clothworker.) [{ BMLE]
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1664

April 11

....and Villiam Sarten aged 27, husbandman and Elizabeth Taylor, 34,
both of Brislington. The wedding to be at Brislington or St Cuthbert's
Wells., Bondsman Richard Peasley of Brislington, coalminer and Thomas
Coram of Vells, innholder. [SRO Wells licences 1636-76]

May 26
....and William Whitton of Bristleton, tailor and Martha Cottle of
Dundry. Bondsman John Whitton of Bristleton. The marriage took place at

8t Augustine's, Bristol, the sams day, the groom "of Busleton". [ BMLE]
October 10

....and finally Roger Earle, basketmaker and Ann Pope, both of
Bristleton; to be at St Augustine's. ‘ [ibid]
1666

January 9

Order to Thomas Daniel and Arthur Brook, Brislington, churchwardens, to
distrain certain persons who have refused to pay their contributions to
the hospitals and maimed soldiers. [SRS @S5 Vol IVI

December 27

Ann Bissicke, wldow, bad moved from &t Anne's to Bristol, and left a
rather sad will. I can't help thinking she would have been happier if
she and John had heen blessed with children.

She left bequests to her kin, members of the Shelton family, of property
in Brislington, including The Moore where Alice Bennett lived, and a
house where Thomas Watts dwelt. To Edward Crofts, a Redecliffe potter
went her great Household Bible and a chest of drawers., To hig wife Mary
a little book called "The Sanctuary of the Troubled soule" with a "gold
deathes head ring" to his daughter.

1667
February 17
Roger Amrie and Joyce Rice of Brislington married at Keynsham. [ KPRI]

May 10 _

Marriage licence, Robert Bennett, the son of Robert and Alicel, of
Bristleton, gallipotmaker and Sarah Cole of Temple; at St Thomas,
Brigtocl. On June 9, Robert became a free burgess of Bristol by reason of
bis merrismge to BSarah, who was the daughter of James Cole, a free
burgess. [ BMLE. BBI]

June 5

Robert Cpllins bought half an acre of meadow ground called Seaven
Swarths, formerly occupied by Allice Phelps, from Rowland Lacy. It will
"not have gone unnoticed that Rowland had been selling off bits of
Brislington for years. Now in this year, he sold the manor itself to
Ezekiel Langton, a Bristol merchant,

....40—
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1668

July 31

Quaker meeting: Attendance of Friemnds from Brislington and Keynsham at a
meeting held at llchester.

James Pearce - Giles Broad Thomas Goodhinde

Richard Milkins John Cowling Tobias Danilell

Mathias Nutt John Doggett John Wythers

William Milkins Samuel Lydeate John Pinkard

Roger Water John Rutt Robert Wastfield. [ SQM]

September 26

Alice Huntington, the widaw of the late Solomon Huntington, a mariner,
and previously the widow of Rabert Bennett, potter of Brislington, made
her will, leaving her son John Bennett, a new house in the Marsh in King
Street, Bristol, and "a little meadaw", one acre in Brislingtaon called
Yohens Mead for life. Forty pounds was to be put by until he should
complete his apprenticeship. Additinnally‘he was to receive the best
featherbed from the Brislington house, a pair of eheets and other
bedding, a “"brasir" pot, and "the soyle that lieth by the harn to be
bestowed on the same ground where it lieth." Mary Rigs, her daughter
received a house in Temple Street, Iformerly belonging to Solomon
Huntington and a pair of dowlais sheets,

She left three pounds to Robert Wastfield and Richard Milkins and the
same amount to VWilliam qurd{ of Bristol, sergeweaver, to ba “"bestowed
amongst Poor Friends - that is Quakers - and twenty shillings to the
poor of Brislington.

The workfolk at the Pottery were not forgotten. Thomas Pope received £3,
Edward Mearn and John Mearn, 20 shillings each, and Nathanlel Hix, ten
shillings. Apprentice Philip Hix, twenty shillings,

All the rest of the "houses, leases, lands and temnements" to Robert
Benpett, her somn, himself a potter.

"yallbeloved Frieads" Robert Vastfield, John VWoodards and Richard
Milkins, to be overseers. The mark of Allce Huntington was witnessed by
Anthony Woodard and Jobn Allen. [ PRO Prob 11/3281

1669
William and John Purdue of Bristaol cast five bells for the Bell Tawer at
€+ Luke's. [The treble was added in 1874.1

March 21

Tobias Provisse of Queen Charlton [baptised Brislington 1627, and the
brother of James Provis and Mary Collinsl, sold to his brother in law -
Robert Collins, a parcel of 1land, one acre, called Little Moore,
formerly in the copyhold of Andrew Daniel and occupied by Tobias Pope; a
tenement called Eastwood and a ground called Ramscliff....[BRO 3583 (2)1]

April 21

Rabert Peasley was admitted to a pension of 40/- yearly in place of
Sidracke Gillet, certified by Sir Thomas Bridges and Thomas Piggott,
esquire. (SRS 34 Q8 Vol IVI
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[This must be Robert, the husband of Elizabeth who was involved with the
wheat in 1657. Robert had been absent then with his wife obviocusly
fending for herself. Had he been away because it was not safe for
Royalist soldiers to return home during the Commonwealth period? Could
he perhaps have been with Charles Stuart in France? Sidracke Gillett of
Whitchurch "who was wounded in the service of Charles I" had been
admitted to pension at the previous sessions, and had presumably since
died.l ~

September 29
Marriage licence, Edward Burgess of Bristleton, farmer and Ann Tuttle of
same, at St Marks, alias Gaunts, Bristol. { BMLBI]

1670

....and of Samuel Whiting, carpenter of ‘Temple and Ann Feere of
Brislington. Bondsman George Feere of Brislington, yeoman. The marriage
took place at Bristol Cathedral the same day, the bride's name given as
Feare, [1bid]

July 21 .

The parishioners of Brislington entered into an sgreemant with Thomas
Munday the Baptist, in respect of a cottage and one acre of ground, late
in the tenure pf William Webb, +the documents of which, known as
" "Munday's Charity" survive as:

Grant and Counterpart of an annuity between
1. Thomas Munday of Brislington, quarrier

&

2. Thomas Jones Israel Gleson John Haskins
Robert Wastfield  George Hall George Feare
Thamas David Robert Ceollins Richard Milkins
Thomas Ithell Robert Bennett Thomas Danlel

Stephen Cowling

....... all of Brislington, concerning an annuity of 24 shillings,
chargeable on a cottage, in one acre of pasture in Brislington to be
distributed annually by the averseers and churchwardens among the poor
of the parish, not receiving weekly alms, [ BRO P/8t LB/Ch3l

1671

June 2

Robert Bennett II, gallypotmaker was of “"The Royal Oake" in Brislington
when he bought The Moor and a withy bed from the Shelton family, who had
inherited the same from the Bissickes. [ BPP]

This interesting house name must surely refer to the escape {celebrated
as Oak Apple Dayl by the young Prince of Vales, now Charles II, when he
hid from the Roundhead soldiers in an oak tree. Robert Bennett, being a
man of property naturally thought about making his will and on

June 14

bequeathed the new purchase to his daughter Sarah, to inherit when she
became 15 years old, with all the rest to his wlfe Sarah, who he made
his executrix., Bvidently Robert believed bis wife capable and
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trustworthy, for wunusually, no male overseers were appointed. The
witnesses were Mary Coles and Robert Vastfield. Less than a month later,
Robert Bemnett was dead and the will proved. The following year, his
widow married Robert Wastfield. [ PCC Fal 23. Qil
1672

February D

The will of Henry Vastfield, yeoman of Brislington mentions:

wife Anne

children: Henry, Robert, Anne and Jane, the wife of Edward Edmonds and
their children.

The will was proved April 6, 167z, {PCC Fol 541

f Anne was Henry's second wife, for he married Jane Baylie at St Luke's
April 16, 1618.]

May 9

Robert Wastfield married Sarah Bennett, in a Quaker ceremony., She was
probably about 20 years his junior, for Robert, mentioned above in his
father's will was baptised at Brislington in 1625. It was a second
marriage for both. ftQtl

1673
June 27
The birth of Elizabeth, daughter of Robert and Sarah Wastfield of
Brislington registered. There was no baptism amongst the Quakers.

[ BRO Quaker registersl
Dctober 7
wOrder that Robert Wastfield be discharged from his office of constable
for the in-hundred of Keynsham, he having been previously elected
tithingman of Brislington and request to the nearest justice to svear
John Saunders of Chewton Keynsham as constable of the Hundred and bind
him over to the next general Sessions, 1f he refuses. [SRS 34 QS Vel IVI

[...from which we can gather it was not a popular task and that coercion
was not ruled out. The office rotated around the yeomanry and husbandry
of the village, the chosen constable taking on the unpaid office for a
year, with duties piled on him by higher authorities. It was the
constable who protected the property of the well to do by watching out
for poachers and trespassers, who would usually come from amongst his
own peaple; he arrested petty thieves and drumnks; settled disputes and
impounded stray animals; despatched poor wayfarers as quickly as
possible into the next parish, and where called upon, as we have seemn,
bloodied the backs of unmarried mothers. In a lighter vein, such rustic
constables - as Shakespeare's Dogberry - were often figures of fun.
There would be no professional police for another century and a half.]

October 22
Robert Collins sold his land at Little MNoore {which he had from Tobias
Provis who purchased it from Nicholas Cowling, now in the tenure of
Roger Earle, basketmaker], to John Hoskins of Brislington, mariner, from
which ground there issued "the yearely fee farm rent of one chilling."

[ BRO 3683 (311
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November 10 ‘

William Ithell {Ithfield] of St Thomas married Rebecca Cowling of
Brislington. Quaker wmarriage. Both suffered imprisonment for thelir
beliefs. They had one son and one daughter. William died 1697, Rebecca
in 1711, QI

November 21
Eleanor Mearne, the daughter of Edward Mearne, potter, late of
Brislingtan deceased, was bound apprentice for seven years as a serving
maid to John Scott, a Bristol mariner, and his wife Mary. Mary Mearne,
Eleanor's mother gave her consent, and like Eleannr herself, made her
mark., The Scotts promised to supply "meate, drink, apparel, lodging and
all things necessary and convenient", and on completion of her contract,
two suits of clothing, "one for Holy Days, another for working days."

" [BAR quoted Pountney p30I]

1674 :
Thomas Codrington retired as vicar of Keynsham and Brislington. He died
two years later in Malmesbury. [Alumni Oxonl

[No priest is recorded as locking after Brislington until 1683.1

January 13

"Order for payment by the treasurer of the maimed soldiers to Henry
Daniell of Brislington and William Best of Keynsham of 20 shillings
each." [SRS 34 QS Vol IVI

October 8

*Order that George Bonfield of Brislington be discharged from being a
pensioner and ‘that John Boucher of Keynsham be admitted in his place at
40 shillings a year as the court is informed that Bonfield can maintain
himself and that Bouch